
 

 

AGENDA 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

Thursday, September 5, 2013 – 7:00 PM 
 Chairperson Mick Routh 

 Commissioners Ron Graves 
  Gayle Ortiz 
  Linda Smith 
  TJ Welch 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A.          August 1, 2013, Regular Meeting Minutes 

  
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 100 Central Avenue      #11-136      APN:036-131-10 

Plan revisions to a previously approved design permit for a new two-story single-family 
dwelling in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Property Owner: Jill Caskey & Bruce Yoxsimer, filed 12/15/11 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine 

 
  



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, September 5, 2013  2 
  
 

B. McGregor Drive      #13-097      APN:036-341-02 
Design Permit for a 700-square-foot structure and a tree removal permit in the PF-VS 
(Public Facilities/Visitor Serving) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Property Owner: Soquel Creek Water District, filed 7/19/2013 
Representative: Michael J. Wilson 

 
C. 410 Bay Avenue      #13-102      APN:  036-062-35 

Design Permit to construct a single-family dwelling in the RM-M (Multiple Family) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Gerry Jensen and Heather Haggerty, filed 7/29/2013 
Representative:  Gerry Jensen 

 
D. 1855 41st Avenue, E-1      #13-105      APN: 034-261-37 

Design Permit to remodel an existing storefront (Chili’s restaurant) located in the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: The Macerich Company, filed: 08/02/2013 
Representative: Roger Nelson 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, October 3, 2013, at 7 p.m., in the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, September 5, 2013  3 
  
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 
All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 
Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1st 
Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings can also be viewed 
from the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us 
 

 
 

http://www.ci.capitola.ca.us/


 
 
 
Chairperson Routh called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order at 7 p.m.     
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ron Graves, Gayle Ortiz, Linda Smith, and TJ Welch and 
Chairperson Mick Routh 
   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - None 
 
 

B. Public Comments - None 
 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
Chairperson Routh noted that again this year during the Wharf to Wharf event, Whole Foods closed 
off its parking lot for an unpermitted event, which included blocking the exit/entrances on Capitola 
Road. He had expressed his concerns to staff prior to the meeting, and was told the Police 
Department said it only requires a permit for amplified music. Chairperson Routh said in addition to 
his concern about the impact on traffic from the center, which is forced to head north on 41st Avenue, 
he believes Whole Foods has a requirement to provide parking. 
 
Commissioner Graves said this situation is indicative of similar concerns about unpermitted uses both 
on sidewalks in front of stores and in parking lots. 
 
Senior Planner Katie Cattan clarified that she had only checked on the permit status and not on the 
question of needing to provide parking. 
 

D. Staff Comments - None 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. July 18, 2013, Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 
Commissioner Ortiz noted that under item 5B, she owns a business in proximity to the project, but not 
the property. 

 
A motion to approve the July 18, 2013, meeting minutes as amended was made by 
Commissioner Ortiz and seconded by Commissioner Smith. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Ortiz, Smith, and 
Welch and Chairperson Routh. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 1, 2013 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  2 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
  

A. 1840 Wharf Road      #13-090      APN:  035-031-40 
Emergency Coastal Permit for a slope stabilization system to be installed due to a 
landslide in the AR/R-1 (Automatic Review/Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Linda White, filed 7/8/13 
Representative:  Jeffrey Dunton 

 
Commissioner Ortiz recused herself because she owns property in proximity to the project. 
 
The item was pulled from the consent agenda for public comment. 
 
Neighbor Steve Walsh said that an adjacent property had what appeared to be similar work done a 
few years prior, and asked if this type of work simply shifts an erosion problem, causing runoff on 
another property, rather than solving it. He also asked if there was a way to reduce the noise. 
 
Contractor Jeff Dunton spoke to the project and explained the problem was not caused by water 
runoff, but because the soil had not been properly compacted previously. The correction has required 
two new retaining walls and numerous helix anchors, and he explained the noise was caused by 
drilling and the soil compressor. 
 
Chairperson Routh closed the public hearing. Commissioner Welch said he had visited the project 
and since the retaining walls are next to the foundation, he did not anticipate it would cause runoff on 
other properties. Chairperson Routh noted the construction noise is within allowable hours. 
 
A motion to approve project application #13-090 with the following conditions and findings 
was made by Commissioner Smith and seconded by Commissioner Welch: 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
1. The project approval consists of an emergency coastal permit for a slope stabilization system at 

1840 Wharf Road.  Storm damage caused by shallow seated debris flows on the hill below the 
single-family house has significantly reduced the lateral support for the existing piers that support 
the three levels of decks on the creek side of the house based on a technical report prepared by 
Tharp & Associates, Inc. dated October 1, 2011.  The stabilization system will consist of a 
concrete retaining wall with wood supports and bracing secured to the slope with deep-seated 
anchors.  The retaining wall is approximately 46’ in width, with a slope height of approximately 5’.   
 

2. The applicant submitted a completed coastal permit application, plans, and required technical 
reports within seven (7) days of the issuance of the emergency coastal permit.  Plans included an 
erosion control plan.   

 
3. All work shall be completed per submitted plan and the erosion control plan shall be strictly 

followed.  Erosion control and sediment management devices shall be installed and inspected by 
City Public Works prior to initiating work. 

 
4. There shall be no work in Soquel Creek, nor any debris allowed in the creek.  If any work is 

necessary within the creek, contact California Department of Fish and Game and submit evidence 
to the Community Development Department that appropriate permits have been issued or are not 
required prior to initiating any work. 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  3 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
5. There shall be no staging of construction materials in the road right-of-way. 
 
6. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30AM – 9:00PM, and Saturday 9:00AM – 

4:00PM, per city ordinance. 
 

7. Any significant modifications to the size approved design must be approved by the Planning 
Commission.  

 
8. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 

project.  The coastal permit for a slope stabilization reinforced concrete retaining wall conforms 
to the requirements of the Local Coastal Program and conditions of approval have been 
included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal 
Plan.    

 
B. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15304 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 Section 15304 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor alterations to land.  No adverse 

environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.   
 
COASTAL PERMIT FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Zoning Ordinance and General Plan 

The project secures the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan by replacing a 
vital utility line that is in need of repair in order to provide service to the city’s existing uses. 

 
Local Coastal Plan  
 
D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written 
factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to the 
certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public access, 
including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and document in 
written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), to the extent 
applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and decisions of the city 
and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an access dedication is 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  4 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which 
have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in this section, 
“cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in combination with the effects of 
past projects, other current projects, and probable future projects, including development 
allowed under applicable planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing and 
open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional and local vicinity 
of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon existing public access and 
recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s cumulative effects upon the use and capacity 
of the identified access and recreation opportunities, including public tidelands and beach 
resources, and upon the capacity of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or 
cumulative build-out. Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal 
access and recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical characteristics of 
the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, and trail 
linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance and potential of the site, 
because of its location or other characteristics, for creating, preserving or enhancing public 
access to tidelands or public recreation opportunities;  
 

• Public access and recreation will not impacted. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 
beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or accretion, character 
and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of shoreline protective structures, 
location of the line of mean high tide during the season when the beach is at its narrowest 
(generally during the late winter) and the proximity of that line to existing structures, and any 
other factors which substantially characterize or affect the shoreline processes at the site. 
Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes at the site. Identification of 
anticipated changes to shoreline processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed 
development. Description and analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the 
primary and cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches 
in the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and 
usability of the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the 
vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public tidelands 
and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

• No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach.  The purpose of the 
project is to abandon sewer lines and relocate them within city streets. 

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public for 
a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the type and character 
of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for passive and/or active 
recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) who has maintained and/or 
improved the area subject to historic public use and the nature of the maintenance performed 
and improvements made. Identification of the record owner of the area historically used by the 
public and any attempts by the owner to prohibit public use of the area, including the success 
or failure of those attempts. Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the 
area from the proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

• The proposed project will be primarily within the city owned right-of-ways.   



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  5 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 
which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public recreation 
areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

• While temporary delays will occur on certain city streets, the project will not impede the 
ability of the public to access the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public recreation 
area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other aspects of the 
development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the public’s use of tidelands or 
lands committed to public recreation. Description of any alteration of the aesthetic, visual or 
recreational value of public use areas, and of any diminution of the quality or amount of 
recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to the individual or cumulative 
effects of the development.    
 

• While temporary delays will occur on certain city streets, the project will not impede the 
ability of the public to access the shoreline. 

  
(D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of 
the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported by written 
findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff top, 
etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the agricultural 
use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for the exception, as 
applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal resources, 
public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character of 
public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons supporting 
the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, seasons, or 
character of public use; 

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  6 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 
management plan to regulate public use. 

• No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of appropriate 
legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, required by the 
certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

  
Policy 17, Pg. 15 of the 1989 City General Plan, states that, “Areas designated as visitor 
serving and/or recreational shall be reserved for visitor support services or recreational uses. 
Permissible uses include, but are not limited to hotels, motels, hostels, campgrounds, food and 
drink service establishments, public facilities, public beaches, public recreation areas or parks, 
and related rental and retail establishments. Residential uses are also permitted on dual 
designated visitor-serving/residential parcels; specifically, a portion of the El Salto Resort, and 
in the Village area. Development can be accomplished through private or public means.” 
 

• The project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies in that it replaces 
and upgrades an existing public facility that provides utility service to existing visitor 
serving and/or recreational uses. 

 
(D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of public and 
private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic 
improvements; 
 

• The project will not permanently affect public or private parking, pedestrian access, or 
alternate mean of transportation as the construction will be temporary with nearly all of 
the resulting infrastructure being located underground. 

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the city’s 
architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design guidelines and 
standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

• The project was reviewed by the City Public Works Director, as the majority of the work 
will be taking place within the City of Capitola right of way.  The work in the right of way 
will meet the applied street design guidelines and standards. 

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, protection 
or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views to and along 
Capitola’s shoreline; 

 
• No public landmarks are affected by the project.  Impacts on views are temporary, 

limited to the presence of construction equipment and disturbance during work, as the 
improvements are largely underground.  Therefore, the project will not block or detract 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  7 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 
  
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances including 
condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 
• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 

apply. 
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection policies;  
 

• A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted by the applicant.  
The proposed mitigation measures ensure that the project complies with the natural 
resource, habitat and archaeological protection policies. 

 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 
• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where 

Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• The project will comply with all applicable erosion control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project complies 
with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks and mitigation 
measures; 
 

• The project is not located within a geologically unstable area or on a coastal bluff. 
 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  8 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the 
project design; 
 

• The project is not located within a geologically unstable area and due to be located 
underground, will not be a cause for a fire hazard. 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

• The proposed development is not located on the shoreline and therefore does not 
require compliance with shoreline structure policies. 

 
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the zoning 
district in which the project is located; 
 

• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, and 
project review procedures; 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements 
and project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

• The project is replacement of an existing sewer service, therefore this finding does not 
apply.  

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

The proposed project will be primarily within the city owned right-of-ways.  The project involves 
replacement of an existing sewer service that will be placed underground, therefore the 
character and integrity of the neighborhood will be maintained. 

 
C. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted for this project based 

upon the completion of an Initial Study. 
 
 An Initial Study was prepared and circulated per CEQA requirements, and a Mitigated 

Negative Declaration with mitigation measures addressing potential impacts adopted based on 
the determination that the project will not have a significant effect on the environment.   

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Smith, and Welch and 
Chairperson Routh. No: None. Abstain: Commissioner Ortiz. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. 2001 41st Avenue      #13-083      APN:  034-511-16 
 Design Permit to remodel an existing commercial building, master sign program, and 
tree permit to remove a tree in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Joel and Priscilla Brown, filed 6/19/13 
Representative:  Steve Thomas 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  9 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Commissioner Ortiz rejoined the meeting. Senior Planner Cattan presented the staff report, noting the 
lot is unusual in that it has two street corners and three street frontages. She explained the project 
includes removing a tree that has displaced pavement and is not healthy, and that the landscaping 
requirement calls for a minimum of 30 trees.  
 
She reviewed the signage, noting that code does not allow for both a wall sign and a monument sign 
along 41st Avenue. She added that the proposed wall signage for that location is two separate 
sections, a logo and wording, but their combined size is significantly smaller than the permitted size 
for a single sign. She also explained that the lettering extends beyond the permitted distance from the 
wall because it is attached to the canopy, not the wall. The Commission can allow that. 
 
Steve Thomas represented the applicant. Mr. Thomas noted the business has been in Capitola since 
1980. He shared images of recent remodels in the Monterey Bay area and visibility on 41st Avenue. 
He requested that Burger King be allowed to keep the monument sign along 41st Avenue and 
exchange the permitted wall sign facing 40th Avenue for one facing the restaurant parking lot.  
 
The commissioners clarified the size, location, and styles of desired signs and discussed replacing the 
tree to be removed. 
 
Chairperson Routh opened the public hearing. There was no public comment and he closed the 
hearing. 
 
Commissioner Graves said the remodel will be improvement. He appreciated the staff 
recommendation that adheres to code for signage, but said he could support a trade for a north 
elevation parking lot sign. He does not like the monument sign.  
 
Commissioner Ortiz concurred. She also would like to keep a tree along 41st Avenue, but leave the 
location up to the applicant. She said she checked with the Santa Cruz Water Department to confirm 
that drip irrigation was permitted, and was told that the City does have jurisdiction to make that 
determination. 
 
Commissioner Welch also said he could support a sign facing the parking north elevation in lieu of 
40th and removal of only the monument sign along Clares. 
 
Commissioner Smith agreed and added she is comfortable determining the logo and “Home of 
Whopper” lettering constitute one sign for the 41st Avenue frontage.  
 
Chairperson Routh also supports logo signage on the north and south elevations without any lettering.  
 
A motion to approve project application #13-083 with the following conditions and findings 
was made by Commissioner Graves and seconded by Commissioner Ortiz: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1.  The project approval consists of an extensive interior and exterior remodel of an existing 

commercial building (Burger King).  No new square footage is proposed, but improvements 
include new exterior materials on all facades, four new wall signs, landscaping, and removal of 
one tree.   

 
2.  Plans submitted for a Building Permit must substantially comply with the plans reviewed and 

approved by the Planning Commission on August 1, 2013.  Any significant modifications to the 
size or exterior appearance of the approved design must be approved by the Planning 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  10 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, or the site, must be approved 
by the Planning Commission. 

 
3.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 
4.  Delivery hours shall be limited to 8 a.m.-8 p.m. to minimize noise impacts to neighboring 

residents.  Delivery vehicles shall not be permitted to remain at idle during non-delivery hours. 
 
5.  Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and fall 

within the allowable city permitted decibel levels.  No roof equipment is to be visible to the 
general public.  Any necessary roof screening is to match the color of the building as closely 
as possible.  Plans for any necessary screening shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Department prior to, or in conjunction with, building permit submittal.  

 
6.  Trash enclosures shall be covered, gated, and maintained to provide a clean and sanitary 

area.  
 
7.  Security lighting in the rear of the store shall be shielded to prevent light from shining on to 

neighboring properties. 
 
8.  Prior to issuance of a building permit, any necessary encroachment permit shall be obtained 

from the Public Works Director. 
 
9.  The applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Santa Cruz Water District with regard 

to the required landscape irrigation and any other new water fixture requirements. 
 
10.  The final landscape plan submitted with the building permit application shall include the 

specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be 
utilized.  A drip irrigation system shall be incorporated as part of the landscape plan. 

 
11.  The project shall meet the 41st Avenue Design Guideline which recommends one 24” box tree 

be planted for every two car spaces.  The total number of trees on site shall be no less than 30 
trees. One tree must be planted along the 41st Avenue street frontage. 
 

12.  The existing monument sign along Clares Street must be removed from the site prior to the 
installation of the new wall signs on the property. The existing monument sign along 41st 
Avenue is authorized.  Two wall signs along 41st Avenue are authorized. One wall sign 
containing the Burger King logo is authorized on the north elevation facing the parking lot. One 
wall sign containing the Burger King logo is authorized on the south elevation facing Clares 
Street. No additional signs are allowed without approval of the Planning Commission.  The 
sign face of existing directional signs within the parking lot may be replaced with a new sign 
that is substantially the same size and design as the existing signs. No additional logos or 
wording may be added. 
 

13.  Window signs may not exceed one-third of the total area of the window. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  11 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st 
Avenue Design Guidelines. Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the 
objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the 
development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st 
Avenue Design Guidelines.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the 
project maintains the character and integrity of the area.  The area is defined by a mix of 
commercial uses, including stand alone businesses, plazas, and a mall.     
 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e)(2) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

Section 15301(e)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts interior or exterior alterations to existing 
structures.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed 
project.   

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Ortiz, Smith, and 
Welch and Chairperson Routh. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 

B. Sign Content 
 
Senior Planner Cattan reported that in response to concern about the use of the word 
“restaurant” on the awning of a business with no sit-down service, the city attorney 
reviewed how much oversight the City has. He indicated that while it can clearly regulate 
land use along with sign size and placement, content jurisdiction is much murkier. 
 
Commissioner Graves said he reviewed the attorney’s recommendation and thanked 
staff for follow-up.  

 
6. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
A. General Plan Update 

Community Development Director Grunow presented a report on the status of the 
General Plan update. He reviewed the initial goals and response to date, and the City 
Council approved a revised work plan in June. It reviewed the budget on July 25 along 
with a sample of a revised, more general approach organized by land use designations. 
The Zoning Ordinance and Local Coastal Plan revisions will be separated from the 
General Plan adoption, and will return to the Planning Commission for guidance. 
 
Director Grunow reviewed the current budget and expenditures to date, and noted the 
consultants are contractually obligated to complete the plan within budget. However, he 
sees staff taking the lead and building upon the framework to date. He anticipates a 
meeting of the GPAC in September or October, and a joint meeting/study session with 
the City Council to review the work in the fall. 
 
Commissioners expressed support for the new approach. Commission Smith asked that 
the joint study session target specific issues. Commissioner Graves noted that 
attendance at community meetings fell off and he would suggest finding a way to 
reenergize the initial participants in order to avoid conflict when time comes to adopt the 
revision. 



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Aug. 1, 2013  12 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

.  
 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Commissioner Graves said that recent work on the Ulta project at the Capitola Mall appears to 
include changes to parking and tree removal that he did not recall in the project description 
approved by the Commission or 41st Avenue guidelines. Senior Planner Cattan replied that she 
believes the work in question is in response to the building official’s discovery that the plan was 
not ADA compliant. 
 
Commissioner Smith noted that she will not be able to attend the September and October 
meetings. Several other commissioners said they will be away in late September and requested 
any special meetings avoid that time. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:10 p.m. to a Regular Meeting of the 
Planning Commission to be held on Thursday, Sept. 5, 2013, at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on Sept. 5, 2013. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Linda Fridy, Minute Clerk 



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 100 CENTRAL AVENUE  # 11-136  APN:  036-131-10 

Plan revision to a previously approved Design Permit for a new two-story single-
family dwelling in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Property Owner:  Jill Caskey & Bruce Yoxsimer, filed 12/15/11 
Representative:  Derek Van Alstine 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Planning Commission approved a Design Permit for a single-family dwelling located at 100 
Central Avenue during the April 5, 2012 public hearing.  At the time of final review of 
construction, staff determined that the exterior building elevations and materials had not been 
built to the approved set of plans.     
 
DISCUSSION 
During the onsite final inspection of the single family home at 100 Central Avenue, Community 
Development Department staff identified modifications to the exterior materials that had not 
been approved by staff or the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission Condition #2 
for the approval of the single family home states “The Planning Commission must approve any 
significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure.”   
 
The design approved by the Planning Commission was Tudor style with cement plaster on the 
first floor exterior and board and batt on the second floor exterior.  The design also included 
wood trim and dark basalt aluminum clad wood doors and windows.  The approved building 
plan elevations were identical to the Planning Commission approval. 
 
On September 2, 2013, the contractor requested the final planning inspection of the home.  
During the final planning inspection, Staff visited 100 Central Avenue to verify that all conditions 
of approval had been met, the landscape had been installed to plan, and the approved building 
plans were adhered to.  Upon inspection, staff found that the approved exterior materials for the 
second floor, board and batt, had not been installed.  Cement plaster had been applied on both 
the first and second stories.  Also, the location of the kitchen door on the south elevation was 
moved from the center of the façade to the western side of the façade.  These changes had not 
been submitted to the Community Development Department for review prior to making the 
changes in the field.  The change to exterior materials on the second floor is a significant 
modification to the exterior appearance of the structure and therefore, not in compliance with 
Condition #2. 
 
Staff requests that Planning Commission review the exterior change on the second story and 
consider approving the modification to the design permit.   
 



  
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the revised exterior elevations and 
building materials represented in the as-built plans. The change from board and batt to cement 
plaster on the second story is similar to existing residence in the area and therefore, maintains 
the character of the neighborhood.         
 
CONDITIONS  
 
1.  All previous conditions of approval of Permit 11-136 continue to apply.  

 
2.  The applicant shall reverse any exterior modifications deemed necessary by the Planning 

Commission during the September 5, 2013 Planning Commission meeting to conform with 
the original approval.  The financial guarantee held by the City will be released upon 
completion of all Planning Commission required modification.   

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The project conforms to the 
development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District. Conditions 
of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, 
General Plan and Local Coastal Plan.  

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the exterior modifications to the project.  The 
exterior material is similar to other newer residences in the area therefore, the project’s 
overall design will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

 
C. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared for this project based upon 

the completion of an Initial Study which identified less than significant impacts. 
 
 A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and adopted based upon the 

findings of an Initial Study which identified that the project may have a significant effect 
on the environment due to the project site being located in geologic hazard, 
environmentally sensitive habitat, and archaeological sensitive zones.  The Mitigated 
Negative Declaration was circulated for a 30 day public review period.  Mitigation 
measures have been incorporated into the conditions of approval to ensure that impacts 
are reduced to a less than significant level.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  April 5, 2012 Planning Commission approved elevations 
B.  August 7, 2013 As-Built elevations 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan 

 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\9-5-13\word\100CentralAve.docx 









   

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1510 MCGREGOR DRIVE  #13-097  APN:  036-341-02 

Design Permit for 700-square-foot structure and a tree removal permit to remove trees 
in the PF-VS (Public Facilities/Visitor Serving) zoning district. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City.   
Environmental Determination:  Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Property Owner:  Soquel Creek Water District 
Representative:  Michael J. Wilson 

 
PROPOSAL 
The Soquel Creek Water District is requesting a Design Permit to construct a 700-square-foot 
structure to enclose a new water pump station at 1510 McGregor Drive in the PF-VS (Public 
Facilities/Visitor Serving) zoning district. The new structure is a principle permitted use within the PF-
VA zoning district.  The structure and subsequent utility improvements are located within the coastal 
zone and therefore subject to approval of a Coastal Development Permit by the Planning 
Commission.  A tree removal permit is also required for the removal of 5 trees onsite. The use is 
consistent with the General Plan, Zoning Ordinance and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On August 14, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.  The 
following direction was provided:  
 

 Public Works Director, Steve Jesberg, reviewed the site plan and did not request any 
modifications.   

 City Architect, Derek Van Alstine, reviewed the site plan and did not request any modifications. 

 City Landscape Architect, Susan Suddjian, reviewed the site plan and requested that the applicant 
provide vegetative screening along the public right-of-way to create less visibility of the utility for 
the public.   She also requested an updated site plan identifying more clearly the trees to be 
removed.  The applicant agreed to plant native shrubs along the exterior of the fence facing 
McGregor Drive.  An updated site plan identifying the trees to be removed was submitted to the 
City.   

 Building Official, Mark Wheeler, reviewed the site plan and requested that a vicinity map be 
included with the plans.  A vicinity map has been submitted and is included within the staff report 
as Attachment B.  

 
 
 
  



 

DISCUSSION 
The project is located at 1510 McGregor Drive, a frontage road adjacent to the south side of 
southbound State Route 1.  The project site is east of the entrance to New Brighton State Park. The 
Soquel Creek Water District recently acquired a 0.14 acre area of land within a 4.31 acre parcel 
owned by the City of Capitola. The land was acquired to operate a booster pump station to improve 
the current water transfer system between service areas 1 and 2.     
 
The water pump station will be enclosed within a 700-square-foot structure. The structure is a 12-foot 
tall, single-story concrete masonry unit (CMU) located on a concrete slab on grade foundation. The 
site will also include a concrete pad for a backup generator. All improvements on the 0.08 acre area 
will be enclosed within a 6-feet high chain linked fence with tan vinyl privacy slats.  A split faced block 
retaining wall is proposed along the south elevation of the site.        
 
Site and Structural Data 
 

Lot Size 7,110 sq. ft. 

Front, Side, Rear Yard Front, side, and rear yard may be required through architectural 
and site approval in order to provide adequate light and air, 
assure sufficient distance between adjoining uses to minimize 
any incompatibility and to promote excellence of development.  

 

 Proposed Square Footage 

Accessory Structure 700 

 

Building Height 

 VS District Proposed 

Residential 36’ 12’ 

 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Accessory Structure 600 sq ft None None 

 
Coastal Permit 
The proposed water pump station is located within the Coastal Zone Combining District.    
Per the Coastal Zone Combining District section (17.46) of the Zoning Code, a Coastal Development 
Permit is required for all development within the coastal zone as defined by the Coastal Act of 1976.  
The proposed water pump station does not qualify for an exemption as set forth in Section 17.46.050.  
The development conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program as outlined in the Local Coastal 
Plan findings in Attachment C.  
 
Trees 
Five trees will be removed from the site to accommodate the new water pump station.  The trees to be 
removed include 4 coast live oak and 1 Monterey pine.  In response to comments on the Draft Initial 
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) from the CCC and the CDFG, the proposed project’s 
area of disturbance was reduced, and consequently, the number of oak trees affected was also 
reduced from the original plans.  The interim Community Development Director, Susan Westman, 
determined that the revised project is in the public interest and that an in lieu fee is sufficient to 
compensate for the loss of the trees. The MND identified the tree removal as a less-than-significant 
impact with mitigation incorporated.  The following mitigation was identified in the MDN and is 
required within Condition #10: 
 



 

Condition #10. The project applicant shall conform to the following standards prior to and during 
project construction: 
 

1. Existing vegetation not planned for removal and designated to remain shall be protected by 
using temporary barriers during grading, construction or related activities; 

2. Off pavement movement of heavy equipment and machinery shall be minimized to avoid 
unnecessary soil compaction; and 

3. Grading or operation of heavy equipment within the dripline of any existing tree not planned for 
removal shall be prohibited to the extent feasible.  

4. (Note in-lieu fee mitigation is within Condition #5)  
 
The fee will be deposited in the community tree and forest management account administered by the 
public works director.  The in-lieu fee adopted by resolution 04-3332 is $600 per tree.  The applicant is 
required to replace 5 trees at a 2 to 1 ratio (10 trees total).  The in-lieu fee for the project is $6,000.  
The in-lieu fee must be deposited prior to issuance of a building permit.   
 
Environmental Review 
A Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared and circulated for a 30-day public review period as 
required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Attachment D).  Appropriate mitigation 
measures have been incorporated into the conditions of approval to ensure that there will not be 
significant effects on the environment.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #13-097, subject to the 
following conditions and based on the following findings: 
 
CONDITIONS:  

1. The project approval consists of construction of a 700-square-foot structure to enclose a new 
water pump station at 1510 McGregor Drive in the PF-VS (Public Facilities/Visitor Serving) 
zoning district. Approval of a Coastal Development Permit, a Design Permit, and a Tree 
Removal Permit are required prior to construction. 
 

2. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Commission on September 5, 2013, except as modified through conditions 
imposed by the Planning Commission at the time of the hearing.  A building permit shall be 
secured for any new construction or modifications to structures, including interior 
modifications, authorized by this permit.  Final building plans shall reflect the set of plans 
approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction shall be completed according to the 
approved plans on which building permits are issued.  
 

3. Any modifications to approved plans after the issuance of any building permit must be 
specifically requested and approved in writing prior to execution.  Minor modifications to the 
design permit (i.e. minor material change, color change) shall require Community 
Development Department approval.  Any significant changes (increase in size, modification to 
massing) shall require Planning Commission approval. 
 

4. Prior to building permit sign off, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  The application 
shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance with 
conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

 
 



 

5. The construction of the plans as presented will require the removal of 5 trees, including 4 
coast live oak and 1 Monterey pine.  The in-lieu fee will be deposited into the community tree 
and forest management account. The in-lieu fee adopted by resolution 04-3332 is $600 per 
tree.  The applicant is required to replace 5 trees at a 2 to 1 ratio (10 trees total).  The in-lieu 
fee for the project is $6,000.  The in-lieu fee must be deposited prior to issuance of a building 
permit.   

 
6.  All work shall be completed per submitted building plans and the erosion control plan shall be 

strictly followed.  Erosion control and sediment management devices shall be installed by the 
applicant and inspected by City Public Works prior to initiating work. 
 

7. Prior to initiating any construction activity during the nesting period (February 1 to August 31), 
a pre-construction nesting bird survey for the presence of raptors and Migratory Bird Treaty 
Act (MBTA) species shall be conducted by a qualified biologist within 30 days prior to 
construction activities to establish the status of these species on the project site and to identify 
any active nests within 200 feet of the project site.  If ground-disturbing activities are delayed 
or suspended for more than 30 days after the preconstruction survey during the nesting 
period, the site shall be resurveyed.  If occupied raptor nests or other nesting MBTA are 
observed within 200 feet of the proposed project site, the CDFW shall be consulted to develop 
measures, including establishing an appropriate buffer distance to avoid disturbance of nesting 
species, prior to the initiation of any construction activities.   
 

8. Construction activities, involving major ground-disturbance, shall occur during the dry/low flow 
season between June 15 and October 15 in order to decrease the risk of sediment transport 
and erosion related to construction activities within the project area.   
 

9. The District shall prevent any additional potential fill, erosion and sedimentation from entering 
the wetland area, other than the impact permitted for construction of the project, if any.  
Construction exclusion fencing shall be installed to separate the work area from the portion of 
the wetland not within the footprint of the proposed pump station.  The District shall prevent 
erosion and sedimentation to the adjacent wetland habitats by installing construction fencing 
backed by silt fencing between the wetland and the work area.  The boundary of the wetland 
will be staked by a qualified biologist and the biologist shall monitor the installation of the 
exclusion fence and silt fence materials.  The fence and materials will be inspected and 
maintained throughout the construction period before being removed following the completion 
of construction.   
 

10.  The applicant shall conform to the following standards prior to and during project construction: 
 

a. Existing vegetation not planned for removal and designated to remain shall be 
protected by using temporary barriers during grading, construction or related activities;  

b. Off pavement movement of heavy equipment and machinery shall be minimized to 
avoid unnecessary soil compaction; and  

c. Grading or operation of heavy equipment within the drip line of any existing tree not 
planned for removal shall be prohibited to the extent feasible.  

 
11. An inadvertent discovery clause for cultural resources shall be incorporated into the 

construction contract for the proposed project.  In the event that any prehistoric or historic 
subsurface cultural resources are discovered during ground disturbing activities, all work within 
50 feet of the resources shall be halted and the District shall consult with a qualified 
archaeologist to assess its significance as defined by Public Resources Code SS5024.1 Title 
CCR, Section 4852 or Public Resources Code section 21083.2.  If any find is determined to be 
significant, representatives of the District and the qualified archaeologist would meet to 



 

determine the appropriate course of action.  All significant cultural materials recovered shall be 
subject to scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and a report prepared by the 
qualified archaeologist according to current professional standards.   
 

12. An inadvertent discovery clause for paleontological resources shall be incorporated into the 
construction contract for the proposed project.  The District shall notify a qualified 
paleontologist of unanticipated discoveries, made by construction personnel and subsequently 
document the discovery as needed.  In the event of an unanticipated discovery of a breas, 
true, and/or trace fossil during construction, excavation within 50 feet of the find shall be 
temporarily halted or diverted until the discovery is examined by a qualified paleontologist.  
The paleontologist shall notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that would be 
followed before construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find.  
 

13. If human remains of Native American origin are discovered during project construction, it is 
necessary to comply with the state laws relating to the disposition of Native American burials, 
which fall within the jurisdiction of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) (Public 
Resources Code Section 5097).  If any human remains are discovered in any location on the 
project site, there will be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area 
reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until: 
 

a. The Santa Cruz County coroner has been informed and has determined that no 
investigation of the cause of death is required; and  

b. If the remains are of Native American origin: 
i. The descendants of the deceased Native Americans have made a 

recommendation regarding the disposition of remains and any associated grave 
goods, as provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98; or  

ii. The NAHC was unable to identify a descendant or the descendant failed to 
make a recommendation within 24 hours after being notified. 
 

14. Prior to any construction activity, the project applicant shall incorporate all applicable 
recommendations of the design-level geotechnical study and comply with all applicable 
requirements of the most recent version of the California Building Standards Code.  All onsite 
soil engineering activities shall be conducted under the supervision of a licensed Geotechnical 
Engineer or Certified Engineering Geologist.  
 

15. Construction equipment shall be properly outfitted and maintained with noise-reduction 
devices to minimize construction-generated noise. Wherever possible, noise generating 
construction equipment shall be shielded from nearby residences by noise attenuating buffers, 
such as structures or trucks.  Stationary construction equipment shall be centrally located on 
site at the greatest distance possible from nearby noise-sensitive receptors.   

 
16. There shall be no staging of construction materials in the road right-of-way. 

 
17. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9 p.m., and Saturday 9: a.m. – 4 

p.m., per City ordinance. 
 

18. Planning fees for project application #13-097 shall be paid in full prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  
 

19. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance, unless an application for an 
extension is submitted prior to expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160.  
 

  



 

FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 

project and have determined that the proposed 700-square-foot structure to enclose a new 
water pump station complies with the Public Facilities/Visitor Serving zoning district in that the 
new structure is a principle permitted use. The structure and subsequent utility improvements 
are located within the coastal zone and therefore subject to approval of a Coastal 
Development Permit by the Planning Commission.  The development conforms to the certified 
Local Coastal Program as outlined in the Local Coastal Plan findings in Attachment C.  A 
design permit is required for the new structure.  The water pump station is oriented on the site 
to minimize site disturbance.  The 12-foot high, simple design of the structure combined with a 
natural vegetative screen along the public right-of-way is appropriate for the use and intent of 
the property.  A tree removal permit is required for the removal of 5 onsite trees.  This impact 
will be mitigated through the collection of in-lieu fees into the Capitola Community Tree and 
Forest Management Account.  The project conforms to the requirements of the Local Coastal 
Program and conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B. The project complies with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 
 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared based upon the findings of an Initial 
Study which identified that the project may have a significant effect on the environment.  The 
Mitigated Negative Declaration was circulated for a 30 day public review period.  The Mitigated 
Negative Declaration was adopted on February 5, 2013 within Resolution 13-05. Mitigation 
measures have been incorporated into the conditions of approval to ensure that impacts are 
reduced to a less than significant level. 

 
 
 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan, AICP                    
     Senior Planner 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Plans 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Local Coastal Plan Findings 
4. Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\9-5-2013\1510McGregor.docx 













D

D
D

D
D

D

DD

DDDD
D

D
D

D D D D
D

D
D

DDD

DDD

D
D

D

D D D D

Concrete V-Ditch

Gas Utility Line

OH Utility Line

Water Utility Line
McGregor Drive

City of Capitola

State of California
(New Brighton State Beach)

Proposed Site Entry

Proposed Retaining Wall

Sewer Force Main

HWY 1

Proposed Retaining Wall

Figure 3
Site Plan

intentional blank line

Soquel Creek Water District
McGregor Pump Station 
intentional blank line

U
R

S
 C

or
p 

- O
ak

la
nd

 C
A

 - 
F.

B
as

hi
r P

at
h:

 L
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

M
cG

re
go

r_
D

riv
e_

P
um

p_
S

ta
tio

n\
M

ap
s\

Fi
gu

re
 3

_S
ite

_P
la

n.
m

xd

0 50 100

Feet

´
Imagery source: Microsoft Bing Maps

D D D Proposed Fence

Water Line

Gas Line

Overhead Electrical and Telephone Line

Sewer Force Main

Proposed Project Boundary

Topographic Contour

1-7



  
 

      
PROJECT APPLICATION #13-097 

1510 McGREGOR DRIVE, CAPITOLA 
PUMP STATION ENCLOSED IN 700 SQ FT STRUCTURE 

 
 
 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
 The proposed project is located on private property adjacent to the entrance of New 

Brighton State Park.  The project will not directly affect public access and coastal 
recreation areas as it involves a water pump station along the road frontage of McGregor 
Drive.  The 700 square foot structure will not have an effect on public trails or beach 
access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 



  
 

shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 
 The proposed project is located adjacent to McGregor Drive, approximately 2,000 feet from 

the shoreline.  No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach.   
 

(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 The privately owned site has historically not been utilized for development or 
recreation.  There is no evidence of use of the site by members of the public for coastal 
access. 

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 The proposed project is located on private property adjacent to New Brighton State 
Park.  The project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

 The proposed project is located on private property adjacent to New Brighton State 



  
 

Park.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to 
public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use 
areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 



  
 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  
 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 The project involves a water pump station for movement of water between two districts.  
The utility will serve both residential and commercial development, including visitor-
serving commercial.   

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 
uses, where feasible. 

 The project involves a water pump station to improve water service between two 
service areas.   

c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 
 The project involves a water pump station to improve water service between two 

service areas.   
 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for 
provision of public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 
 

 The project involves a water pump station for public utilities.  The project complies with 
applicable standards and requirements for provision of public and private parking, 
pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic improvements.  The 
site will attract one vehicle per week for monitoring the water pump station.  

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 
 The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 

Municipal Code.   
  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 
 The proposed project is located on private property adjacent to the entrance to New 

Brighton State Park.  The project will not result negatively impact public landmarks and/or 
public views.  The project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s 
shoreline.   

 



  
 

(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 
 The project establishes a water pump station to improve water services between two 

service areas.   
 

(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 
 The project establishes a water pump station to improve water services between two 

service areas.   
 (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 
 The project establishes a water pump station to improve water services between two 

service areas.  GHG emissions for the project are projected at less than significant impact.  
 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 
 The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 

 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 
 The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   

 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 
 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established policies. 

 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 
 The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 

Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 
 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 

control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 
 Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 

project.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
incorporate all applicable recommendation of the design-level geotechnical study and 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code.   
 



  
 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 
 
 Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this project 

which is located in a geologic hazard zone.  Conditions of approval have been included to 
ensure the project complies with geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for 
and will be mitigated in the project design. 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  
 The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 

  
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 
 The project includes a 700 sq ft structure to enclose a new water pump.  This use is an 

allowed use consistent with the Public Facilities/Visitor Serving zoning district.  
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 
 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 

project development review and development procedures. 
 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 
 The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission/ 9-5-2013.doc 



Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration

Proposed McGregor Drive Booster Pump Station

Prepared for:

Soquel Creek Water District

Prepared by:

URS Corporation

January 29, 2013



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1 Project Description ......................................................................................................... 1-1

Section 2 Initial Study/Determination ............................................................................................ 2-1

Section 3 Environmental Review Checklist .................................................................................. 3-1

Section 4 References ...................................................................................................................... 4-1

Tables



List of Figures and Acronyms

Figures

Appendices



List of Figures and Acronyms

Acronyms and Abbreviations 



List of Figures and Acronyms



SECTION Project Description 

1. Section 1 ONE Project Description 

1.1 INTRODUCTION AND PROJECT LOCATION 

1.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Site Conditions 

Quercus agrifolia Genista
monspessulana

Juncus effusus pacificus

Project Description 



SECTION Project Description 



SECTION Project Description 

Potential Future Expansion of Pump Station 

Surrounding Land Use and Setting 

1.3 REQUIRED APPROVALS 



SECTION Project Description 

1)



!(

Project location

!(

Map area

Fresno

Redding

San Diego

Bakersfield

Los Angeles

San Francisco

Sacramento

Figure 1
Regional Location Map

intentional blank line

Soquel Creek Water District
McGregor Pump Station 
intentional blank line

U
R

S
 C

or
p 

- O
ak

la
nd

 C
A

 - 
F.

B
as

hi
r P

at
h:

 L
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

M
cG

re
go

r_
D

riv
e_

P
um

p_
S

ta
tio

n\
M

ap
s\

Fi
gu

re
 1

_8
x1

1_
P

ro
je

ct
_L

oc
at

io
n.

m
xd

´
0 5 10

MILES

Imagery source: Microsoft Bing Maps

1-5



! (

Pr
oj

ec
t 

lo
ca

tio
n

Fi
gu

re
 2

Vi
ci

ni
ty

 M
ap

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - F.Bashir Path: L:\Projects\McGregor_Drive_Pump_Station\Maps\Figure 2_Project vicinity.mxd

0
2,

00
0

4,
00

0

Fe
et´

Im
ag

er
y 

so
ur

ce
: M

ic
ro

so
ft 

Bi
ng

 M
ap

s

1-
6



D

D D D D D

D
D

D
D

D

DDDD

D
D

D

D D D D

D
D

D

D
D

DDDD

D
D

D
D

C
on

cr
et

e 
V

-D
it

ch

G
as

 U
ti

lit
y 

Li
ne

O
H

 U
ti

lit
y 

Li
n

e

W
at

er
 U

ti
lit

y 
Li

n
e

M
cG

re
go

r 
D

riv
e

C
it

y 
of

 C
ap

it
o

la

St
at

e 
of

 C
al

if
or

n
ia

(N
ew

 B
ri

gh
to

n
 S

ta
te

 B
ea

ch
)

P
ro

p
os

ed
 S

it
e 

En
tr

y

P
ro

p
os

ed
 R

et
ai

n
in

g 
W

al
lSe

w
er

 F
or

ce
 M

ai
n

H
W

Y 
1

P
ro

p
os

ed
 R

et
ai

n
in

g 
W

al
l

Fi
gu

re
 3

Si
te

 P
la

n
in

te
nt

io
na

l b
la

nk
 li

ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - F.Bashir Path: L:\Projects\McGregor_Drive_Pump_Station\Maps\Figure 3_Site_Plan.mxd

0
50

10
0

Fe
et´

Im
ag

er
y 

so
ur

ce
: M

ic
ro

so
ft 

Bi
ng

 M
ap

s

D
D

D
Pr

op
os

ed
 F

en
ce

W
at

er
 L

in
e

G
as

 L
in

e

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
E

le
ct

ric
al

 a
nd

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
 L

in
e

Se
w

er
 F

or
ce

 M
ai

n

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

To
po

gr
ap

hi
c 

C
on

to
ur

1-
7



So
qu

el
Cr
ee
k
W
at
er

Di
st
ric
t

M
cG

re
go
rP

um
p
St
at
io
n

Fi
gu
re

Ty
pi
ca
lP
um

p
St
at
io
n

1-
8



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

2. Section 2 TWO Initial Study/Determination 

2.1 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 

Determination



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3. Section 3 THREE Environmental Review Checklist 

3.1 EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

a)

b)

c)



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

6)

7)

8)

9)

a)

b)

3.2 AESTHETICS 

Would the Project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

Discussion
a)  No impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

b)  Less-than-significant-impact.

c)  Less-than-significant-impact.

d) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.3 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural 
resources are significant environmental effects, 
lead agencies may refer to the California 
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site 
Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the 
California Dept. of Conservation as an optional 
model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture 
and farmland. In determining whether impacts to 
forest resources, including timberland, are 
significant environmental effects, lead agencies 
may refer to information compiled by the 
California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection regarding the state’s inventory of 
forest land, including the Forest and Range 
Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy 
Assessment project; and forest carbon 
measurement methodology provided in Forest 
Protocols adopted by the California Air 
Resources Board. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a) No impact. 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

b)  No impact. 

c-d) No impact. 

e) No impact. 

3.4 AIR QUALITY 

Where available, the significance criteria 
established by the applicable air quality 
management or air pollution control district 
may be relied upon to make the following 
determinations. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Where available, the significance criteria 
established by the applicable air quality 
management or air pollution control district 
may be relied upon to make the following 
determinations. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a)  Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

b-c) Less-than-significant impact.

Construction Impacts 

Table 3.4-1: Potentially Significant Construction Impacts (PM10)
Activity Screening-Level Thresholds 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Operational Impacts 

d) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

e) Less-than-significant impact. 

3.5 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 

Quercus
agrifolia

Juncus effusus var. 
pacificus



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

A Manual of California 
Vegetation

Juncus effusus var. pacificus
Artemisia douglasiana Equisetum arvense

Rorippa nasturtium-aquatica Epilobium
ciliatum Polygonum persicaria Lythrum hyssopifolia

Mentha pulegium
Rhamnus (Frangula) californica

Toxicodendron diversilobum Baccharis pilularis

Eucalyptus globulus

Avena barbata
Gnaphalium luteo-album Carduus pycnocephalus Picris

echioides Conyza canadensis Sonchus asper
Cirsium vulgare



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Accipiter
cooperii

perennial seep wetland
Rana draytonii

Riparian Woodlands



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Pinusradiata
Quercusagrifolia

Toxicodendrondiversilobum
Equisetum arvense



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Juncuseffusus var. pacificus),

Salix lasiolepis Acer
macrophyllum Aesculuscalifornica

Cornus sp.)

Populustrichocarpa Alnus Platanusrecemosa
Acer negundo



M
C

G
R

EG
O

R
 D

R
IV

E

W
RW

 - 
TA

NN
ER

Y 
GU

LC
H 

RI
PA

RI
AN

 A
RE

A

LIMIT  OF  VEGETATION  MAPPING

LIM
IT

  O
F 

 V
EG

ET
AT

IO
N 

 M
AP

PI
NG

LIMIT  OF  VEGETATION  MAPPING

EU
C

CL
OW

MT
P

SR
M

RU
D

MT
P

LT
S

CL
OW

CL
OW

EU
C

Fi
gu

re
 5

Ta
nn

er
y 

G
ul

ch
in

te
nt

io
na

l b
la

nk
 li

ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - C.Raumann  L:\Projects\McGregor_Drive_Pump_Station\Maps\Biology\Figure_5_McGregor_Tannery Gulch.mxd

0
50

10
0

FE
E

TÑ

LE
G

E
N

D

P
ro

po
se

d 
P

ro
je

ct
B

ou
nd

ar
y

S
ite

 F
ea

tu
re

N
or

th
er

n 
B

ou
nd

ar
y

of
 T

an
ne

ry
 G

ul
ch

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
A

re
a

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

Bo
un

da
ry

N
ot

 F
ie

ld
 V

er
ifi

ed

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
C

LO
W

 - 
C

oa
st

 L
iv

e 
O

ak
 W

oo
dl

an
d

E
U

C
 - 

E
uc

al
yp

tu
s 

Tr
ee

 G
ro

ve
LT

S
 - 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Tr

ee
s 

an
d 

S
hr

ub
M

TP
 - 

M
on

te
re

y 
P

in
e

R
U

D
 - 

R
ud

er
al

 A
re

a
S

R
M

 - 
S

of
t R

us
h 

M
ar

sh
W

R
W

 - 
W

ill
ow

 R
ip

ar
ia

n 
W

oo
dl

an
d

1 
IN

C
H

 =
 1

00
 F

E
E

T

3-
15



Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
 in

 1
92

8

Fi
gu

re
 6

H
is

to
ric

 A
er

ia
l P

ho
to

gr
ap

hs
 o

f t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - F.Bashir

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
 in

 1
94

0

3-
16



Fi
gu

re
 7

P
ro

je
ct

 V
ic

in
ity

 P
ho

to
gr

ap
h 

of
 M

on
te

re
y 

P
in

e 
Ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
,

H
or

se
ta

il 
U

nd
er

st
or

y,
 a

nd
 th

e 
E

ph
em

er
al

 D
itc

h
in

te
nt

io
na

l b
la

nk
 li

ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - F.Bashir

3-
17



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

State Listed and Rare Plant Species

a) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

BIO-1

Danaus plexippus

BIO-1

b) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

c) Less than significant with mitigation incorporated. 

BIO-2 BIO-3

BIO-2

BIO-3

d) Less-than-significant impact.

e) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



M
C

G
R

E
G

O
R

 D
R

IV
E

EU
C

RU
D

SR
M

MT
P

CL
OW

CL
OW

Fi
gu

re
 8

U
.S

. A
rm

y 
C

or
ps

 o
f E

ng
in

ee
rs

 a
nd

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

oa
st

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 W

et
la

nd
s

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - C.Raumann  L:\Projects\McGregor_Drive_Pump_Station\Maps\Biology\Figure_8_McGregor_Wetlands.mxd

0
20

40

FE
E

TÑ

LE
G

E
N

D

W
et

la
nd

 T
es

t P
oi

nt

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

Bo
un

da
ry

Si
te

 F
ea

tu
re

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

Bo
un

da
ry

C
on

cr
et

e 
R

oa
ds

id
e

D
itc

h 
(e

ph
er

m
er

al
)

W
et

la
nd

, U
.S

. A
rm

y
C

or
ps

 o
f E

ng
in

ee
rs

an
d 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

oa
st

al
C

om
m

is
si

on

W
et

la
nd

, C
al

ifo
rn

ia
C

oa
st

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 o

nl
y

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

C
LO

W
 - 

C
oa

st
 L

iv
e 

O
ak

 W
oo

dl
an

d
E

U
C

 - 
E

uc
al

yp
tu

s 
Tr

ee
 G

ro
ve

M
TP

 - 
M

on
te

re
y 

P
in

e
R

U
D

 - 
R

ud
er

al
 A

re
a

S
R

M
 - 

S
of

t R
us

h 
M

ar
sh

1 
IN

C
H

 =
 4

0 
FE

E
T

3-
21



nm

nmnm
nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nm

nmnm

nmnm nm

M
C

G
R

E
G

O
R

 D
R

IV
E

~ 
70

 ft

~ 95 ft

~ 75 ft

EU
C

RU
D

SR
M

MT
P

CL
OW

CL
OW

8

1312

10

11

4

3

1

9

6
5 7

2

15

14

Fi
gu

re
 9

C
oa

st
 L

iv
e 

O
ak

 T
re

es
in

te
nt

io
na

l b
la

nk
 li

ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - F.Bashir  L:\Projects\McGregor_Drive_Pump_Station\Maps\Biology\Figure_9_McGregor_CoastLiveOak_Trees.mxd

0
20

40

FE
E

TÑ

LE
G

E
N

D

nm
C

oa
st

 L
iv

e 
O

ak
 T

re
e

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

Bo
un

da
ry

Si
te

 F
ea

tu
re

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

Bo
un

da
ry

C
on

cr
et

e 
R

oa
ds

id
e

D
itc

h 
(e

ph
er

m
er

al
)

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
C

LO
W

 - 
C

oa
st

 L
iv

e 
O

ak
 W

oo
dl

an
d

E
U

C
 - 

E
uc

al
yp

tu
s 

Tr
ee

 G
ro

ve
M

TP
 - 

M
on

te
re

y 
P

in
e

R
U

D
 - 

R
ud

er
al

 A
re

a
S

R
M

 - 
S

of
t R

us
h 

M
ar

sh

1 
IN

C
H

 =
 4

0 
FE

E
T

3-
22



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

BIO-4

1)

2)

3)

4)

f) No impact.

3.6 CULTURAL RESOURCES 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

1. P-44-000216 (Trinomial #CA-SCR-214)
Olivella sp

2. P-44-000406 (OC-1, MC-1; Trinomial CA-SCR-334H)

3. P-44-000512 (HRI # 5010-0004-0000)



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Results of Archaeological Monitoring for the McGregor Drive Main 
Extension Project

Archaeological Literature Research for the City of 
Capitola’s Sphere of Influence, Revision 1979-1 EIR Preliminary Cultural 
Resources Reconnaissance of a Parcel on McGregor Road, Capitola, Santa Cruz County, 
California

CR-1

CR-1

c) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

CR-2

CR-2

d) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

CR-3

CR-3

1)

2)

o

o

3.7 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-i) Less than significant impact.

a-ii) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

GEO-1

a-iii) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.

a-iv) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

 GEO-1

b) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

c) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated

d) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.

 GEO-1

e) No impact.

3.8 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.9 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b) Less-than-significant impact.

b) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

c) Less-than-significant impact.

d) Less-than-significant impact.

e-f) No impact. 

g) Less-than-significant impact.

h) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.10 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

Discussion: 
a, f) Less-than-significant impact. 

b) Less-than-significant impact.

c-d) Less-than-significant impact. 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

e) Less-than-significant impact.

g) No impact.

h-i) No impact. 

j) No impact.

3.11 LAND USE AND PLANNING 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact No Impact 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
With
Mitigation 
Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a) No impact.

b) No impact.

c) No impact.

3.12 MINERAL RESOURCES 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b) No impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.13 NOISE

Would the project result in: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a, c-d) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

NOI-1



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

NOI – 2

b) Less-than-significant impact.

e-f) No impact.

3.14 POPULATION AND HOUSING 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a)  Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

b-c) No impact.

3.15 PUBLIC SERVICES 

a. Would the project result in substantial 
adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, response times, or 
other performance objectives for any of the 
following public services: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a) No impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.16 RECREATION

Would the Project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b) No impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.17 TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

c-d) No impact.

e) No impact.

f)  No impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.18 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

Discussion: 
a-b, d-g) No impact.

c) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

3.19 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Would the Project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact

Discussion: 
a) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.

b) Less-than-significant impact.



SECTION Initial Study/Determination 

c) Less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated.



SECTION References 

4. Section 4 FOUR References 

4.1 REFERENCES 

 Soquel U.S. 
Geological Survey (USGS) Quadrangle.

New Brighton State Beach General 
Plan,

Watsonville West Moss Landing Santa Cruz



SECTION References 

Riparian Corridors

Transit Noise and Vibration 
Impact Assessment

Results of Archaeological Monitoring for the McGregor Drive Main 
Extension Project.

Locality Catalog. 



Appendix A 

Appendix A  Summary Report for Annual Emissions 



P
ag

e:
 1

1/
16

/2
01

2 
08

:3
2:

16
 A

M

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

 D
us

t
P

M
10

 E
xh

au
st

P
M

10
P

M
2.

5 
E

xh
au

st
C

O
2

0.
03

0.
25

0.
15

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
03

0.
01

27
.0

5

0.
15

0.
74

0.
51

0.
00

0.
01

0.
04

0.
05

0.
04

94
.3

0

U
rb

em
is

 2
00

7 
V

er
si

on
 9

.2
.4

S
um

m
ar

y 
R

ep
or

t f
or

 A
nn

ua
l E

m
is

si
on

s 
(T

on
s/

Y
ea

r)

F
ile

 N
am

e:
 

P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e:
 C

ap
ito

la
 B

oo
st

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n

P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

ou
nt

y

O
n-

R
oa

d 
V

eh
ic

le
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
B

as
ed

 o
n:

 V
er

si
on

  :
 E

m
fa

c2
00

7 
V

2.
3 

N
ov

 1
 2

00
6

O
ff-

R
oa

d 
V

eh
ic

le
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
B

as
ed

 o
n:

 O
F

F
R

O
A

D
20

07

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 E

M
IS

S
IO

N
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

S

P
M

2.
5 

D
us

t
P

M
2.

5

20
12

 T
O

T
A

LS
 (

to
ns

/y
ea

r 
un

m
iti

ga
te

d)
0.

00
0.

01

A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

:

S
an

ta
 C

ru
z 

C
ou

nt
y

0.
23

 A
cr

es
 o

f l
an

d 
- 

fr
om

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

Li
gh

t i
nd

us
tr

ia
l l

an
d 

us
e 

in
 U

R
B

E
M

IS
.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
be

gi
ns

 la
te

 2
01

2 
an

d 
en

ds
 in

 2
01

3.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ph

as
in

g 
(li

gh
t g

ra
di

ng
, p

av
in

g,
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

 a
nd

 c
oa

tin
g)

 U
R

B
E

M
IS

 d
ef

au
lt.

E
qu

ip
m

en
t l

is
t -

 U
rb

em
is

 D
ef

au
lt

20
13

 T
O

T
A

LS
 (

to
ns

/y
ea

r 
un

m
iti

ga
te

d)
0.

00
0.

04

A
pp

en
di

x 
A



N
o.

 o
f P

um
ps

E
ne

rg
y 

U
sa

ge
 (

hp
)

E
ne

rg
y 

U
sa

ge
 (

kw
)

T
ot

al
 E

ne
rg

y 
U

sa
ge

 (
kw

)
H

ou
rs

/Y
ea

r
kW

H
ou

rs
/Y

ea
r

P
G

&
E

 E
F

 (
M

T
 C

O
2/

M
W

H
)

M
T

 C
O

2/
Y

ea
r

3
20

15
45

87
60

39
19

40
0.

20
5

80
.3

5
4

20
15

60
87

60
52

25
86

0.
20

5
10

7.
13

G
en

er
at

or
 (

na
tu

ra
l g

as
)

15
0

kW
26

M
M

B
tu

/Y
ea

r
34

M
M

B
tu

/Y
ea

r
50

H
ou

rs
/Y

ea
r

75
%

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

E
ff

ic
ie

nc
y

N
ox

C
O

S
O

2
M

et
ha

ne
V

O
C

P
M

10
P

M
2.

5
C

O
2

4.
08

0.
31

7
5.

88
E

-0
4

1.
25

1.
18

E
-0

1
7.

71
E

-0
5

7.
71

E
-0

5
1.

10
E

+
02

N
ox

C
O

S
O

2
M

et
ha

ne
V

O
C

P
M

10
P

M
2.

5
C

O
2

13
9

11
0.

02
43

4.
0

0.
00

3
0.

00
3

37
53

N
ox

C
O

S
O

2
M

et
ha

ne
V

O
C

P
M

10
P

M
2.

5
C

O
2

0.
07

0
0.

00
5

0.
00

00
1

0.
02

1
0.

00
2

0.
00

00
01

0.
00

00
01

1.
88

C
O

2e
 (

M
et

ric
 T

on
s/

Y
ea

r)
2.

11

T
ot

al
 C

O
2e

 3
 P

um
ps

82
.4

6
T

ot
al

 C
O

2e
 4

 P
um

ps
10

9.
24

E
m

is
si

on
 fa

ct
or

s 
fr

om
 :

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.p
ge

.c
om

/in
cl

ud
es

/d
oc

s/
pd

fs
/s

ha
re

d/
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t/c
al

cu
la

to
r/

pg
e_

gh
g_

em
is

si
on

_f
ac

to
r_

in
fo

_s
he

et
.p

df
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.e

pa
.g

ov
/tt

n/
ch

ie
f/a

p4
2/

ch
03

/fi
na

l/c
03

s0
2.

pd
f

G
en

er
at

or
 (

D
ie

se
l)

N
ox

C
O

S
O

2
M

et
ha

ne
V

O
C

P
M

10
P

M
2.

5
C

O
2

0.
02

9
0.

00
7

0.
00

0
-

0.
00

2
0.

00
1

0.
00

1
3.

45

C
O

2e
 (

M
et

ric
 T

on
s/

Y
ea

r)
3.

13

T
ot

al
 C

O
2e

 3
 P

um
ps

83
.4

8
T

ot
al

 C
O

2e
 4

 P
um

ps
11

0.
26

P
u

m
p

 E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

 C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 In
d

ir
ec

t 
G

H
G

 E
m

is
si

o
n

s

E
m

is
si

o
n

 f
ac

to
rs

 (
lb

/M
m

b
tu

)

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(l

b
s/

ye
ar

)

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(t

o
n

s/
ye

ar
)

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(t

o
n

s/
ye

ar
)



R
O

G
N

O
x

0.
00

0.
03

0.
00

0.
03

0.
00

0.
03

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

O
ff

-R
oa

d 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t:

1 
G

en
er

at
or

 S
et

s 
(2

01
 h

p)
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

at
 a

 0
.7

4 
lo

ad
 fa

ct
or

 fo
r 

10
 h

ou
rs

 p
er

 d
ay

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

P
ha

se
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns

P
ha

se
: B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
1/

1/
20

12
 -

 1
/8

/2
01

2 
- 

D
ef

au
lt 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 C

oa
tin

g 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

B
ui

ld
in

g 
W

or
ke

r 
T

rip
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3.
45

B
ui

ld
in

g 
V

en
do

r 
T

rip
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3.
45

B
ui

ld
in

g 
O

ff 
R

oa
d 

D
ie

se
l

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3.
45

B
ui

ld
in

g 
01

/0
1/

20
12

-0
1/

08
/2

01
2

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

P
M

2.
5 

D
us

t
P

M
2.

5 
T

ot
al

C
O

2

20
12

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

P
ro

je
ct

 L
oc

at
io

n:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

ou
nt

y

O
n-

R
oa

d 
V

eh
ic

le
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
B

as
ed

 o
n:

 V
er

si
on

  :
 E

m
fa

c2
00

7 
V

2.
3 

N
ov

 1
 2

00
6

O
ff-

R
oa

d 
V

eh
ic

le
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
B

as
ed

 o
n:

 O
F

F
R

O
A

D
20

07

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 E

M
IS

S
IO

N
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

S
 (

A
nn

ua
l T

on
s 

P
er

 Y
ea

r,
 U

nm
iti

ga
te

d)

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

 D
us

t
P

M
10

 T
ot

al

P
ag

e:
 1

1/
16

/2
01

2 
11

:1
7:

24
 A

M

U
rb

em
is

 2
00

7 
V

er
si

on
 9

.2
.4

D
et

ai
l R

ep
or

t f
or

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d 

E
m

is
si

on
s 

(T
on

s/
Y

ea
r)

F
ile

 N
am

e:
 

P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e:
 G

en
er

at
or



Appendix B 

Appendix B-1 Vascular Plants of McGregor Drive Pump Station Study Area  



Family Scientific Name Common Name Life history Status
Anacardiaceae Toxicodendron diversilobum Pacific poison oak shrub native
Asteraceae Ageratina adenophora ageratina perennial non native
Asteraceae Aster chilensis California aster perennial native
Asteraceae Baccharis pilularis coyote brush shrub native
Asteraceae Carduus pycnocephalus Italian thistle annual Cal IPC Moderate
Asteraceae Cirsium vulgare bull thistle biennial non native
Asteraceae Conyza canadensis Canada horseweed annual native
Asteraceae Delairea odorata Cape ivy perennial Cal IPC High
Asteraceae Gnaphalium luteo album weedy cudweed annual non native
Asteraceae Hypochaeris radicata hairy cat's ear annual Cal IPC Limited
Asteraceae Picris echioides bristly ox tongue annual Cal IPC Limited
Asteraceae Sonchus asper spiny sowthistle annual non native
Asteraceae Sonchus oleraceus common sowthistle annual non native
Boraginaceae Myosotis discolor forget me not annual non native
Brassicaceae Raphanus sativus charlock raddish biennial Cal IPC Limited
Caprifoliaceae Lonicera hispidula honeysuckle vine native
Caryophyllaceae Kickxia spuria fluellin annual non native
Convolvulaceae Convolvulus arvensis field bindweed perennial non native
Cyperaceae Cyperus eragrostis umbrella sedge perennial native
Dennstaedtiaceae Pteridium aquilinum bracken fern perennial native
Dryopteridaceae Dryopteris arguta wood fern perennial native
Dryopteridaceae Polystichum munitum sword fern perennial native
Equisetaceae Equisetum arvense common horsetail perennial native
Fabaceae Genista monspessulana French broom shrub Cal IPC High

Fabaceae Trifolium angustifolium
narrowleaf crimson
clover

annual non native

Fagaceae Quercus agrifolia coast live oak tree native
Juncaceae Juncus effusus Pacific rush perennial native
Lamiaceae Mentha pulegium pennyroyal perennial non native
Lythraceae Lythrum hyssopifolium hyssop loosetrife annual Cal IPC Moderate
Myrtaceae Eucalyptus globulus blue gum tree Cal IPC Moderate
Onagraceae Epilobium ciliatum fireweed annual native
Pinaceae Pinus radiata Monterey pine tree horticultural
Poaceae Bromus hordeaceus soft brome annual Cal IPC Limited
Poaceae Cynosorus echinatus dogstail grass annual non native

Appendix B
Vascular Plants of McGregor Drive Pump Station Study Area

1



Appendix B 

Appendix B-2 California Department of Fish & Game Natural Diversity Database 



California linderiella
Linderiella occidentalis

ICBRA06010 S2S3G31

1B.2RareDudley's lousewort
Pedicularis dudleyi

PDSCR1K0D0 S2.2G22

EndangeredOhlone tiger beetle
Cicindela ohlone

IICOL026L0 S1G13

1B.1Santa Cruz clover
Trifolium buckwestiorum

PDFAB402W0 S1.1G14

EndangeredEndangeredSanta Cruz long-toed salamander
Ambystoma macrodactylum croceum

AAAAA01082 S1G5T15

1B.1EndangeredThreatenedSanta Cruz tarplant
Holocarpha macradenia

PDAST4X020 S1.1G16

EndangeredZayante band-winged grasshopper
Trimerotropis infantilis

IIORT36030 S1G17

SCfoothill yellow-legged frog
Rana boylii

AAABH01050 S2S3G38

mimic tryonia (=California brackishwater snail)
Tryonia imitator

IMGASJ7040 S2S3G2G39

monarch butterfly
Danaus plexippus

IILEPP2010 S3G510

SCpallid bat
Antrozous pallidus

AMACC10010 S3G511

1B.1Endangeredrobust spineflower
Chorizanthe robusta var. robusta

PDPGN040Q2 S1G2T112

Threatenedsteelhead - central California coast DPS
Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus

AFCHA0209G S2G5T2Q13

SCEndangeredtidewater goby
Eucyclogobius newberryi

AFCQN04010 S2S3G314

SCwestern pond turtle
Emys marmorata

ARAAD02030 S3G3G415

1B.1EndangeredEndangeredwhite-rayed pentachaeta
Pentachaeta bellidiflora

PDAST6X030 S1G116

1B.2woodland woollythreads
Monolopia gracilens

PDAST6G010 S2S3G2G317

Commercial Version -- Dated January 01, 2012 -- Biogeographic Data Branch Page 1
Report Printed on Tuesday, January 24, 2012



Appendix B 

Appendix B-3 List of Regionally Occurring Special-Status Species 



Cicindela ohlone

Trimerotropis infantilis

(Rana draytonii)



Ambystoma 
macrodactylum croceum

Brachyramphus 
marmoratus marmoratus

Coccyzus americanus

Empidonax 
traillii extimus

Charadrius alexandrines 
nivosus

Sterna antillarum browni



Vireo bellii pusillus

Eucyclogobius newberryi

Oncorhynchus kisutch

Oncorhynchus mykiss 
irideus

Arenaria paludicola

Chorizanthe pungens
pungens

Chorizanthe robusta
hartwegii



Chorizanthe robusta
robusta

Holocarpha macradenia

Pentachaeta bellidiflora

Plagiobothrys 
diffusus

Polygonum hickmanii



Danaus plexippus

Emys marmorata



(Rana boylii) 

Agelaius tricolor

Accipiter cooperii

Ardea herodias



(Circus cyaneus) 

Elanus leucurus )

(Geothlypis trichas 
sinuosa) 

Lanius ludovicianus

Antrozous pallidus

Dipodomys venustus 
venustus

Neotoma fuscipes 
annectens



Taxidea taxus

Amsinckia lunaris

Arabis 
blepharophylla

Arctostaphylos 
andersonii

Arctostaphylos glutinosa

Arctostaphylos 
ohloneana

Arctostaphylos 
pajaroensis

Arctostaphylos silvicola



Arenaria paludicola

Calochortus uniflorus

Campanula californica

Carex comosa

Carex saliniformis

Castilleja ambigua
ambigua

Collinsia multicolor

Elymus californicus

Eriogonum nudum
decurrens



Grindelia hirsutula
maritima

Hoita strobilina

Horkelia cuneata
sericea

Horkelia marinensis

Leptosiphon grandiflorus

(Lessingia micradenia
glabrata

Malacothamnus arcuatus

Microseris paludosa



Monolopia gracilens

Pedicularis dudleyi

Penstemon rattanii
kleei

Pinus radiata

Piperia candida

Plagiobothrys chorisianus
chorisianu

Rosa pinetorum



Sidalcea malachroides

Silene verecunda
verecunda

Stebbinsoseris decipiens

Trifolium buckwestiorum





Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual

Hydric Soils of California

California’s Wildlife.  



Appendix B 

Appendix B-4 List of Plant Species with the Potential to be found on the Project Site 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

1 
 

Boraginaceae Amsinckia lunaris Bent-flowered fiddleneck 
 

Life Form: perennial herb 
Status: 1B.2 
Ecology: Coastal bluff scrub, woodlands and grasslands 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: March-June 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Caryophyllaceae Arenaria paludicola Marsh sandwort 
 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: Federally Endangered, State Endangered, CNPS 1B.1 
Ecology: Freshwater and brackish marshes and swamps in sandy openings 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

2 
 

Potential: Medium.  
Flowering time: May-August 
Liliaceae Calochortus uniflorus Large-flowered mariposa lily 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 4.2 
Ecology: Coastal prairie, coastal scrub, seeps, and grassland 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-June 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Bogs and fens, closed-cone coniferous forest, coastal prairie, marshes and swamps, wet 
sites 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: June-October 
 
 

Campanulaceae Campanula californica Swamp harebell 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

3 
 

 
Cyperaceae Carex comosa Bristly sedge 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 2.1 
Ecology: Coastal prairie, marshes, swamps, lake margins, wet sites. 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: May-September 

 
Cyperaceae Carex saliniformis Deceiving sedge 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Coastal prairie, coastal scrub, seeps, marshes and swamps, including coastal salt marsh 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: June-July 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

4 
 

 
 
Orobanchaceae Castilleja ambigua ssp. ambigua Johnny nip 

Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 4.2 
Ecology: Coastal scrub and prairie, bluff scrub, swamps and marshes, vernal pools, grassland 
Potential: Medium 
Flowering time: March-August 

 
Plantaginaceae Collinsia multicolor San Francisco collinsia 

Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Closed-cone coniferous forests, coastal scrub, sometimes on serpentine 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: March-May 

 
 
 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

5 
 

 
 
Poaceae Elymus californicus California bottle-brush grass 

Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 4.3 
Ecology: Woodland, broadleaf forest, coniferous forest, riparian woodland 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: May-August 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Polygonaceae Eriogonum nudum var. decurrens Loma Prieta Hoita 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.1 
Ecology: Sandy chaparral, woodland, and maritime ponderosa pine sandhills 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: June-October 

 
 
 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

6 
 

Fabaceae Hoita strobilina Loma Prieta hoita 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.1 
Ecology: Chaparral, woodlands and riparian woodlands, usually on seasonally wet serpentine 
locations 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: May-July 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Rosaceae Horkelia marinensis Pt. Reyes Horkelia 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Coastal dunes, coastal prairie, coastal scrub, sandy sites 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: May-September 

 
 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

7 
 

Polemoniaceae Leptosiphon grandiflorus Large-flowered leptosiphon 

Life Form: annual herb 
Status: CNPS 4.2 
Ecology: Coastal scrub, coastal prairie, coastal dunes, grassland, often on sandy sites 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-August 
 
 
Malvaceae Malacothamnus arcuatus Arcuate bush mallow 

Life Form: shrub 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Chaparral, woodland 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-September 

 
 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

8 
 

Asteraceae Microseris paludosa Marsh microseris 

 
Life Form: perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Closed-cone coniferous forest, woodland, coastal scrub, and grassland. 
Potential: Medium 
Flowering time: April-June 

 
 
Asteraceae Monolopia gracilens Woodland woolythreads 

 
Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Broadleaf forest and coniferous forest openings, woodland, and grassland, on serpentine 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: March-July 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

9 
 

Orobanchaceae Pedicularis dudleyi Dudley’s lousewort 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Maritime chaparral, woodland, coniferous forest 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-June 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Orchidaceae Piperia candida White-flowered rein orchid 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Broadleaf forest and coniferous forest, sometimes on chaparral 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: May-September 

 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

10 
 

 
Boraginaceae Plagiobothrys chorisianus var. chorisianus Chloris’s popcorn flower 

Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: At least seasonally wet sites of chaparral, coastal prairie, and coastal scrub 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: March-June 

 
 
Malvaceae Sidalcea malachroides Maple-leaved checkerbloom 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 4.2 
Ecology: Broadleaf forest, coastal prairie, coastal scrub, coniferous forest, riparian woodlands, 
often in disturbed areas 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-August 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

11 
 

Caryophyllaceae Silene verecunda ssp. verecunda San Fracisco campion 

Life Form: Perennial herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Coastal bluff scrub, chaparral, coastal prairie, and grassland, sandy or rocky sites 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: March-June 

 
Asteraceae Stebbinsoseris decipiens Santa Cruz microseris 

 
Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.2 
Ecology: Broadleaf forest, closed-cone coniferous forest, chaparral, coastal prairie, grassland, 
coastal scrub, sometimes on serpentine. 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-May 

 



Appendix B-4 
List of Plant Species with the Potential to be Found on the Project Site 
June 27, 2012 
 

12 
 

Fabaceae Trifolium buckwestiorum Santa Cruz Clover 

Life Form: Annual herb 
Status: CNPS 1B.1 
Ecology: Broadleaf forest, woodland, coastal prairie, on gravelly margins. 
Potential: Low 
Flowering time: April-October 



Appendix B 

Appendix B-5 McGregor Drive Pump Station Invasive Plant Management Plan 



McGregor Drive Pump Station Invasive Plant Management Plan 

Introduction 

Existing Site Conditions 
Quercus 

agrifolia Genista monspessulana

Juncus effusus var. pacificus

Carduus pycnocephalus

Invasive Plants 

Control Methods 



Control Measures 

Table 1: Control Measures for Preventing and Eliminating Invasive Plants at the 
McGregor Pump Station Site. 

Control Measure Control Method 
Category

Implementation and 
Monitoring





Success Criteria 

References 



Appendix C 

Appendix C Preliminary Subsurface Drainage System Plan 







Appendix D 

Appendix D Comment Letters and Summary of Changes to the Draft IS/MND 



Appendix D: Comment Letters and Summary of Changes to the Draft IS/MND

Two comment letters were received in response to the Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative
Declaration (IS/MND) circulated in June 2012. Comment letters received from the California Coastal
Commission (CCC) and the California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG), along with letters prepared
by the Soquel Creek Water District (District) in response to those comments, are provided at the end of
this Appendix.

Key changes to the Draft IS/MND that were considered prior to the lead agency’s preparation of the
Final IS/MND are summarized below:

1. Section 1.2: Project Description
a. The reduced size of the final Project site is described in this section and depicted in a

revised Figure 3. The Project size was changed from a 0.11 acre area to a 0.08 acre
area.

b. The boundary of the project development area of 0.16 acres was moved north and
adjacent to McGregor Drive, and further away from an adjacent seep wetlands area
located to the south.

c. The proposed subsurface drainage system for maintaining the existing hydrologic
connectivity was further described and a conceptual plan for the drainage system is
provided in Appendix C.

d. Revises the number of oak trees to be taken from six to three.
e. Includes proposed actions to remove and control invasive plant species as part of

the proposed Project. These actions are further described in Appendix B 5.
f. Revises Figures:

i. Revised Figure 3, Site Plan
ii. Revised Figure 4, Typical Pump Station (formerly Figure 5)
iii. Added Figure 5, Tannery Gulch Riparian Area
iv. Added Figure 6, Historical Aerial Photographs of the Project Site
v. Added Figure 7, Project Vicinity Photograph of Monterey Pine Vegetation

Community, Horsetail Understory, and the Ephemeral Ditch
vi. Added Figure 8, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and California Coastal

Commission Wetlands
vii. Added Figure 9, Coast Live Oak Trees

2. Section 1.3: Required Approvals
a. The revised project plan does not include dredge or fill activity within Waters of the

U.S.; hence, approval from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is no longer listed in
this section.

3. Section 3.2 Aesthetics
a. Discussion Item (a): Revised to indicate a reduction in the number of oak trees to be

taken.
b. Discussion Item (b): Clarified use of fence materials to be used and visual screening

of the pump station structures from adjacent roadways and driveways.



c. No change in the Draft IS/MND impact assessment; no significant impacts would
result.

4. Section 3.5 Biological Resources
a. General Discussion: Added a description of biological studies and findings prepared

in response to comments from the CCC and CDFG. Rationale was provided based on
the subsequent biological field investigation that the location of riparian habitat was
well away from potential effects of the proposed project. The added discussion also
reported the absence of rare plants during the late June survey, consistent with
prior surveys, and provided an updated list in Appendix B 4 of rare and protected
species with the potential to be present within the Project site and biological study
area. Finally, further discussion of proposed actions to remove and control invasive
plant species is provided, and a more detailed invasive plant species removal and
control plan as provided as Appendix B 5.

b. Discussion Item (c): Discussion of the revised Project area boundary and its
proximity to adjacent seep wetlands is provided, including consideration of
proposed subsurface drainage system features proposed to maintain existing
hydrological connectivity with adjacent areas. The discussion describes the
biological survey conducted in response to CDFG comments, during which U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers and CCC define wetlands boundaries were determined south of
the proposed Project area. Subsequently, BIO 2 to prepare a wetlands delineation
was removed.

c. Discussion Item (e): The reduction in the number of oaks to be taken is discussed
payment of an in lieu fee to the City’s community tree and forest management
account is added.

d. No change in the Draft IS/MND impact assessment; no significant impacts would
result.

5. Noise
a. General Discussion: Text is added further describing the rationale for expected

attenuation of construction noise, specifically at the nearest camp sites within New
Brighton State Beach.

b. No change in the Draft IS/MND impact assessment; no significant impacts would
result.

6. Appendix Items
a. Added Appendix B 4: Updated list of rare and protected plant species with the

potential to be found within the Project site (during additional survey work)
b. Added Appendix B 5: Invasive Plant Species Removal and Control Plan
c. Added Appendix C: Preliminary Subsurface Drainage System Plan
d. Added Appendix D: Comment Letters and Summary of Changes to the Draft IS/MND
e. Added Appendix E: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan



California Coastal Commission 
Appendix D 02 CCC Comments 6 12 2012.doc 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA – NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  EDMUND G. BROWN, JR., GOVERNOR

CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION 
CENTRAL COAST DISTRICT OFFICE 
725 FRONT STREET, SUITE 300 
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060 
PHONE: (831) 427-4863 
FAX: (831) 427-4877 
WEB: WWW.COASTAL.CA.GOV

June 22, 2012 

Subject: Comments on the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the McGregor 
Pump Station Project 



Project Comments on the Initial Study/Mitigated Neggative Declaration
for the McGregor Pump Station Project 
Page 2 

California Coastal Commission 











































n m

n mn m
n m

n m

n m

n m

n m

n m

n m

n mn m

n mn m n m

M
C

G
R

E
G

O
R

 D
R

IV
E

EU
C

RU
D

SR
M

MT
P

CL
OW

CL
OW

8

3

1312

10

11

4

1

9

6
5 7

2

15

14

Fi
gu

re
 1

C
oa

st
 L

iv
e 

O
ak

 T
re

es
in

te
nt

io
na

l b
la

nk
 li

ne

So
qu

el
 C

re
ek

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
M

cG
re

go
r P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

in
te

nt
io

na
l b

la
nk

 li
ne

URS Corp - Oakland CA - C.Raumann  L:\Projects\McGregor_Drive_Pump_Station\Maps\Biology\McGregor_Biology_Fig03_Trees.mxd

0
20

40

FE
E

TÑ

LE
G

E
N

D

n m
C

oa
st

 L
iv

e 
O

ak
 T

re
e

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

Bo
un

da
ry

Si
te

 F
ea

tu
re

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

Bo
un

da
ry

C
on

cr
et

e 
R

oa
ds

id
e

D
itc

h 
(e

ph
er

m
er

al
)

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
C

LO
W

 - 
C

oa
st

 L
iv

e 
O

ak
 W

oo
dl

an
d

E
U

C
 - 

E
uc

al
yp

tu
s 

Tr
ee

 G
ro

ve
M

TP
 - 

M
on

te
re

y 
P

in
e

R
U

D
 - 

R
ud

er
al

 A
re

a
S

R
M

 - 
S

of
t R

us
h 

M
ar

sh

1 
IN

C
H

 =
 4

0 
FE

E
T



Appendix E 

Appendix E Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan 



Proposed McGregor Drive Booster Pump Station IS/MND                           1 Soquel Creek Water District

Appendix E 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Proposed Soquel Creek Water District McGregor Drive Booster Pump Station 



P
ro

po
se

d 
M

cG
re

go
r 

D
ri

ve
 B

oo
st

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
S

/M
N

D
S

oq
ue

l C
re

ek
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

ri
ng

 a
nd

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
N

um
be

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

Pa
rt

y 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

T
im

in
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

B
IO

-1

B
IO

-2

B
IO

-3



P
ro

po
se

d 
M

cG
re

go
r 

D
ri

ve
 B

oo
st

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
S

/M
N

D
S

oq
ue

l C
re

ek
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

ri
ng

 a
nd

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
N

um
be

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

Pa
rt

y 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

T
im

in
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

B
IO

-4

1) 2) 3) 4)

C
R

-1
 



P
ro

po
se

d 
M

cG
re

go
r 

D
ri

ve
 B

oo
st

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
S

/M
N

D
S

oq
ue

l C
re

ek
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

ri
ng

 a
nd

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
N

um
be

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

Pa
rt

y 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

T
im

in
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

C
R

-2
 

C
R

-3
 



P
ro

po
se

d 
M

cG
re

go
r 

D
ri

ve
 B

oo
st

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

ti
on

 I
S

/M
N

D
S

oq
ue

l C
re

ek
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

ri
ng

 a
nd

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
N

um
be

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

Pa
rt

y 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

T
im

in
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

G
E

O
-1

 

N
O

I-
1

N
O

I-
2



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 410 BAY AVENUE  #13-102  APN:  036-06-235 

Design Permit to construct a single-family dwelling with a secondary dwelling unit in the 
RM-M (Multiple Family) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Gerry Jensen and Heather Haggerty 
Representative:  Gerry Jensen 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 2,688-square-foot single-family residence with a secondary 
dwelling unit at 410 Bay Avenue in the RM-M (Multiple Family) zoning district. A single-family 
residence in the RM-M zoning district is subject to the development standards contained in the R-1 
single-family residence zoning district. The use is consistent with the General Plan, Zoning Ordinance 
and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On August 14, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   
 

 City Architect Derek Van Alstine suggested that additional details of exterior material be 
provided on the elevations. He also stated concern that the design of the proposed green roof 
could easily be converted into a rooftop deck. The applicant added details to the elevations.  
The original green roof design was removed.    

 City Landscape Architect Susan Suddjian approved of the overall proposed landscape plan 
and efforts toward low water use. She commented that the landscape plan should be revised 
to label the trees and quantities more clearly. She suggested including pavers between the 
driveway and front door and modifying the retention under the front parking space. The 
applicant updated the landscape plan to incorporate all of the suggestions made by Susan 
Suddjian.  

 City Public Works Director Steve Jesberg suggested that the driveway and sidewalk cuts be 
ADA accessible.  The applicant modified the cuts as requested.  

 City Building Official Mark Wheeler stated concern for the green roof design. The original 
design included a spiral staircase leading to a green roof.  The green roof was set 3’ below the 
top of the parapet roof. This design does not comply with the International Building Codes 
(IBC) requirement of 3’ 6” rails for safety. The applicant removed the green roof from the 
project  due to access, safety, and FAR concerns.            
 

  



 

SITE AND STRUCTURAL DATA 
  

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 5,518 sq. ft. 

Maximum FAR Allowed 49% 2,703 sq. ft. 

Proposed FAR 48% 2,688 sq. ft. 

 

Proposed Square Footage 

First Floor 1,672 

Second Floor 940  

Total Basement 315 

Total 2,927 

Less Basement Exception 250 

Plus upper floor deck beyond 150 sq. ft. 11 

Gross Floor Area 2,688 

Upper Floor Deck Exception 150 

Proposed Upper Floor deck 161  

 

Building Height 

 R-1 District Proposed 

Residential 25'-0" 24'-10" 

 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Residential 
(2,601 sq. ft. – 
4,000 sq. ft.) 

4 spaces total 
Minimum 1 covered 
3 uncovered 

4 spaces total  
1 covered 
3 uncovered 

   

Secondary Dwelling Unit 

 Required Proposed 

Unit Size 500 sq. ft. maximum 493 sq. ft. 

 
DISCUSSION 
The applicant is proposing a new 2,688 square-foot, single-family home with a secondary dwelling 
unit. The primary residence is 2,195 square feet.  The secondary dwelling unit is 493 square feet, in 
compliance with the 500 square-foot maximum.  The secondary dwelling unit contains a kitchen, living 
room, one bedroom, and one bathroom.  Access to the secondary dwelling unit is from exterior doors 
on the front and rear of the home, as well as interior doors between the attached dwelling unit and the 
primary home.   
 
A single-family home between 2,601 square feet and 4,000 square feet is required to have four on-
site parking spaces. The four on-site parking spaces include one interior space within a single car 
garage and three uncovered, exterior parking spaces.  The interior parking space is 10’ x 20’.  The 
single car garage will be accessed from the driveway. Three uncovered parking spaces are proposed 
in front of the home.  Two spaces are located within the proposed 20’ x 20’ driveway and one space 
on turf block in the south-east corner of the property.  The driveway complies with the maximum 
driveway width of 20’, per Section 17.51.130.A.13.    
 
Proposed exterior materials for the single-family home include wood board and batten, fiberglass 
doors, vinyl windows, a parapet standing-seam metal roof, and a metal garage door.  A color and 
materials board will be presented during the Planning Commission meeting. The applicant’s original 
design included a spiral staircase leading to the parapet roof with a green roof located 3’ below the 



 

top of the parapet. The spiral staircase provided convenient access to the green roof but was not in 
compliance with the International Building Code (IBC).  Areas intended for access must have a 3’ 6” 
railing for safety.  If the parapet wall were brought into compliance, the area would be considered 
accessible and count toward the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) for the home.  Staff supported the inclusion 
of a green roof in the project and advised the applicant to redesign roof with limited access to comply 
with both the FAR and the IBC. The applicant decided to remove the green roof due to access, safety, 
and FAR concerns.            
 
The landscape plan includes bamboo trees along the rear property line of the home, 2 acer palmatum 
(15 gallons) trees, 6 crape myrtle trees, and a mix of perennials and shrubs throughout the front yard.  
Ground cover includes a mix of artificial turf and blue stone crushed drain rock.   
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15303(a) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of a single-family residence in a 
residential zone.  This project involves construction of a new single-family residence subject to the R-
1 (single-family residence) Zoning District.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during review of the proposed project  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-102 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 
1.  The project approval consists of construction of a new 2,688 gross-square-feet, single-family 

home with an attached secondary dwelling unit. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the property is 
2,703 square feet.  The FAR of the primary residence is 2,195 square feet.  The secondary 
dwelling unit is 493 square feet.  The secondary dwelling unit may not exceed 500 square feet.   
 

2.  The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission on September 5, 2013, except as modified through conditions imposed by 
the Planning Commission at the time of the hearing.  A building permit shall be secured for any 
new construction or modifications to structures, including interior modifications, authorized by this 
permit.  Final building plans shall reflect the set of plans approved by the Planning Commission.  
All construction shall be completed according to the approved plans on which building permits are 
issued.  

 
3.  Any modifications to approved plans after the issuance of any building permit must be specifically 

requested and approved in writing prior to execution.  Minor modifications to the design permit (i.e. 
minor material change, color change) shall require Community Development Department 
approval.  Any significant changes (increase in size, modification to massing) shall require 
Planning Commission approval. 

 
4.  Prior to building permit sign off, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be demonstrated 

to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. The 
application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance with 
conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

 
5.  Hours of construction shall be Monday through Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9 p.m., and Saturday 9 a.m. – 4 

p.m., per city ordinance. 
 
6.  The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and Public 

Works Department requirements.  A note shall be placed on the final building plans indicating this 
requirement.   



 

 
7.  An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 

 
8.  The existing sidewalk will be cut for driveway access onto the property at 410 Bay Avenue.  The 

sidewalk replacement shall be built to ADA standards.   
 

9.  A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Director. 

 
10. The project shall implement Low Impact Development BMP’s outlined in the Slow it. Spread it. 

Sink it. Homeowner’s Guide to Greening Stormwater Runoff by the Resource Conservation District 
of Santa Cruz County.  The applicant shall provide details on the BMPs implemented and with a 
goal of not allowing more than 25% of total impervious area from discharging directly from the site. 

 
11. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will include the 

specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be utilized. 
Front yard landscaping and all trees shall be installed prior to final building occupancy.  

 
12. Planning fees associated with permit #13-102 shall be paid in full prior to building permit 

issuances.  
 
13. Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City of 

Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.  Any appropriate fees shall be paid prior to 
building permit issuance. 

 
14. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 
 

15. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance, unless an application for an 
extension is submitted prior to expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160.  

 
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the 
development standards of the RM-M (Multi-family) and R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning 
Districts.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the 
development standards of the RM-M (Multi-family district) and R-1 (Single Family Residence) 
Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project 
maintains the character and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed single-family 
residence with a secondary dwelling unit compliments the existing mix of single-family and 
multi-family residential in the neighborhood in use, mass and scale, materials, height, and 
architecture.   

  



 

 
 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves construction of a new single-family residence in the RM-M (multi-family 

residence) Zoning District.  Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction 
of a single-family residence in a residential zone.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner  
                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\9-5-13\pdf\4.C\410BayAvenue.docx  



















 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1855 41st Avenue, E-1 #13-105  APN: 034-261-37 

Design Permit in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: The Macerich Company 
Representative: Roger Nelson, filed: 08/02/2013 

 

PROPOSAL 
The applicant has applied for a Design Permit for an exterior remodel of the Chili’s restaurant.  
The Chili’s restaurant is located at 1855 41st Avenue within the Capitola Mall.  The property is 
within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district.  Exterior modification to the siding and 
awning are proposed.  No changes to the site, building footprint, or circulation are proposed.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On August 14, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.  
The following direction was provided: 
 

 Public Works Director, Steve Jesberg, reviewed the site plan and did not request any 
modifications.   

 City Architect, Derek Van Alstine, reviewed the colors and materials board and approved of 
the overall design. 

 City Landscape Architect, Susan Suddjian, reviewed the site plan and did not request any 
modifications. 
 

DISCUSSION 
Chili’s Restaurant, located at 1855 41st Avenue, submitted a sign permit on May 1, 2013.  The 
Sign Permit was approved in accordance with §17.57.020.B1.  During the review of the Sign 
Permit, staff required the applicant to submit an application for a Design Permit for the extensive 
exterior modifications proposed for the building.  The Capitola Mall was approved through a 
Conditional Use Permit.  Any modifications to the previously approved design must be approved 
by the Planning Commission.  There is no change of use within the application.  The exterior 
remodel of the Chili’s restaurant requires Design Permit approval by the Planning Commission.   
 
  



 

 

The following exterior modifications are proposed within the Chili’s remodel:  
 

1. Replace existing green tile with stucco textured panels; 
2. Add two rows of trim to separate new paint colors;  
3. Apply new paint on existing exterior stucco; and  
4. Remove existing awning; and install new fabric awning panels. 

 
Section 17.63.090 outlines the considerations in the review of Design Permit applications.  
There are no modifications to the site, landscaping, and circulation.  The following underlined 
considerations apply to the design permit for the remodel of Chili’s Restaurant at 1855 41st 
Avenue:   
 
B.    Considerations relating to outdoor advertising: 

1.    The number, location, color, size, height, lighting and landscaping of outdoor 
advertising signs and structures in relation to the creation of traffic hazards and the 
appearance and harmony with adjacent development;   

 
Staff Analysis: The existing awning will be replaced by a new awning with greater 
vertical emphasis.  The new awning is made of 6’9” tall fabric panels that extend the 
width of the front facade from the entrance of the restaurant to the north corner of the 
building. The awning compliments the updated signs and new color scheme along the 
front façade of the building.     

 
F.    Considerations relating to architectural character: 

1.    The suitability of the building for its purpose, 
2.    The appropriate use of materials to insure compatibility with the intent of the title; 
 

Staff Analysis:  The proposed mix of new materials, including stucco panels, fabric 
awning, and fresh paint will modernize the existing, outdated façade.  The new materials 
complement the existing architecture of the mall and are appropriately located within the 
existing horizontal bands of the building.    

 
L.    Consideration of design guidelines for special commercial or residential areas contained in   

the general plan, coastal plan, area plans or other approved design policies; 
 

Staff Analysis: The 41st Avenue Guidelines are applicable to the application.  There are 
no proposed modifications to the site, therefore the site, landscape and parking 
guidelines are not applicable.  The application complies with the 41st Avenue 
architecture guidelines, specifically guideline 8 which is applicable to the mall: 

 
41st Avenue Guideline #8: Projects containing many buildings or single large structures 
shall provide variety in building shape, height, roof lines, and setbacks.  Fronts of 
buildings shall provide variety and interest.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #13-105 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
  



 

 

CONDITIONS  
 

1.  The project approval consists of a design permit for the exterior remodel to the siding and 
installation of a new awning for the Chili’s Restaurant located in the Capitola Mall at 1855 
41st Avenue. 
 

2.  The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Commission on September 5, 2013, except as modified through conditions 
imposed by the Planning Commission at the time of the hearing.  A building permit shall be 
secured for any new construction or modifications to structures, including interior 
modifications, authorized by this permit.  Final building plans shall reflect the set of plans 
approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction shall be completed according to the 
approved plans on which building permits are issued.  
 

3.  Any modifications to approved plans after the issuance of any building permit must be 
specifically requested and approved in writing prior to execution.  Minor modifications to the 
design permit (i.e. minor material change, color change) shall require Community 
Development Department approval.  Any significant changes (increase in size, modification 
to massing) shall require Planning Commission approval. 

 
4.  Prior to building permit sign off, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development 
Director.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of 
non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 

 
5.  Planning Fees associated with permit #13-105 shall be paid in full prior to building permit 

issuance.  
 

6.  This approval shall terminate two years after granting the request, if such right or privilege 
has not been exercised in good faith within that time. Such termination will take effect 
without further city action if a timely request for extension of time has not been made or is 
denied.  

 
FINDINGS 
 

A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 
the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan.   

 
The Planning Commission finds that the proposed exterior modifications comply with the 
zoning ordinance.  The proposed modifications to the exterior elevations are limited to 
the exterior of the building with no changes in height, setbacks, and/or use.  Updating 
existing commercial within commercial districts is reflective of the purposes of the 
General Plan.     

 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

The Community Development Department Staff and Planning Commission have 
reviewed the plans to ensure that the exterior modifications maintain the character and 
integrity of the Capitola Mall. The new materials complement the existing architecture of 
the mall and are appropriately located within existing horizontal bands of the building. 



 

 

C.  The new exterior materials, as designed and conditioned, are necessary and 
appropriate for the subject commercial site, in order to allow the site and the 
businesses located within it to be competitive with other businesses of a similar 
nature located elsewhere, and/or to be competitive with industry standards 
governing sale of the merchandise offered at the site. 

The new exterior materials are necessary and appropriate for the Capitola Mall, allowing 
it to be competitive with other regional malls. The proposed mix of new materials, 
including stucco panels, fabric awning, and fresh paint will modernize the existing, 
outdated façade. 

D.  The new exterior materials, as designed and conditioned, will not have a 
significant adverse effect on the character and integrity of the surrounding area. 

The new exterior materials are appropriate for a commercial retail center of this size, and 
will not have an adverse effect on the character and integrity of this commercial area. 

 
E. This project is categorically exempt under the Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
This project involves the installation of new siding and a canopy on an existing 
commercial retail building.  Section 15301(a) exempts existing facilities.   

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan                     
     Senior Planner 
 
Attachment A – Exterior Elevations 
Attachment B – Photoshop Image 
Attachment C – Existing façade images 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\9-05-13 



201 S. Maple Avenue, Suite 300
Ambler, PA  19002
Phone (215) 809-2125
Fax (215) 809-2124
jscheffey@core-eng.com

NEW TRIM

AREA OF NEW FINISH 
REMOVE TILE 
INSTALL STUCCO PANELS AND TRIM

NEW TRIM



201 S. Maple Avenue, Suite 300
Ambler, PA  19002
Phone (215) 809-2125
Fax (215) 809-2124
jscheffey@core-eng.com



 

 



Existing Entry 

 

 

Façade to be  

Remodeled 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Façade to be  

Remodeled 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjacent 

Businesses 

 


	9.05.2013 Agenda
	8-1-13 DRAFT Minutes
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - None
	B. Public Comments - None
	FINDINGS

	100 Central Avenue Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	1510 McGregor Drive Staff Report
	Attachment A.
	Attachment B.
	Attachment C.
	Attachment D.
	410 Bay Avenue Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment A.
	Attachment B.

	1855 41st Ave Staff Report
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

